
   
 

Original Post Date: April 21, 2023 
 

Village of Somers 
7511 12th Street  

Somers, WI 53171 
 

Village Board Meeting  
Agenda 

Tuesday, April 25, 2023 
5:30 p.m.  

 
Village Board Meeting:  
   

 

Item # 
 

  

1 Call to order 
2 Pledge of Allegiance  
3 Consent and Approval of Minutes of Regular meetings on April 11, 2023, 

Vouchers dated April 13, 2023, and April 20, 2023, Investment Summary 
Report for March  

4 Correspondence:  
5 Citizens Comments 
6 President and Trustee Comments  
7 Public Hearing on Resolution 2023-005, a Petition to Remove 

Territory from Utility District No. 1 
8 Action on Resolution 2023-005, An Order to Removing Territory from the 

Village of Somers Utility District No. 1   
9 Public Hearing on Resolution 2023-006, A Resolution regarding FEMA’s 

recent Letter of Map Revision for the area known as Unnamed Tributary No. 8 
to Kilbourn Ditch Overflow 

10 Action on Resolution 2023-006, A Resolution regarding FEMA’s recent Letter 
of Map Revision for the area known as Unnamed Tributary No. 8 to Kilbourn 
Ditch Overflow 

11 Action on proposed Ordinance 2023-009, An Ordinance to Repeal and 
Recreate Section ZN 4.08(1)(a) 5b of the Code of Ordinance of the Village of 
Somers Relating to the Official Maps and Revisions 

12 Plan Commission Recommendations (Funk Trust & Golden Oil): 
 

a. Action on Request by: Arlo F and Jeanne L Funk Trust, 27822 Santa 
Anita Blvd, Wesley Chapel, FL 33544 (Owner), Paul Bhardwaj, Golden 
Oil LLC, 1170 22nd Ave., Kenosha, WI 53140 (Agent), requests a 

1 of 98 2023-04-21



   
 

Original Post Date: April 21, 2023 
 

rezoning from A-1 Agricultural Preservation Dist. to A-4 Agricultural 
Land Holding Dist. & A-1 Agricultural Preservation Dist., on Tax Parcel 
#82-4-222-073-0102, located in the SW ¼ of Section 7, T2N, R22E, 
Village of Somers. (For informational purposes only, this property is 
located at the NE corner of CTH E and East Frontage Rd.) 

 
b. Action on Request by: Arlo F and Jeanne L Funk Trust, 27822 Santa 

Anita Blvd, Wesley Chapel, FL 33544 (Owner), Paul Bhardwaj, Golden 
Oil LLC, 1170 22nd Ave., Kenosha, WI 53140 (Agent), requests 
approval of a Certified Survey Map (undated CSM prepared by Ryan 
Wilgreen of Excel Engineering) to create one (1) 25.00-acre Lot and one 
(1) 37.027-acre Lot from Tax Parcel # 82-4-222-073-0102, located in the 
SW ¼ of Section 7, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers. (For informational 
purposes only, this property is located at the NE corner of CTH E and 
East Frontage Rd.) 

13 Action on proposed Ordinance 2023-010, an Ordinance to repeal and recreate 
section 13.55 Appendix “A” of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of 
Somers relating to the amount of Sewer service charges 

14 Action on proposed Resolution 2023-007, A Resolution in Support of the City 
Burlington’s effort to amend Wisconsin State Statue 125.51(4)(e) to allow the 
transfer of “Class B” liquor licenses throughout an entire county 

15 Discussion and possible action on change order #3 from Camosy Construction 
Inc. for Lift Station No. 1A and Water Transfer Station 

16 Discussion and possible action on request for Final Payment from Camosy 
Construction Inc. in the amount of $139,512 for work on Lift Station 1A and 
Water Transfer Station 

17 Action on re-appointment of Donald Boxx to Plan Commission (3-year term to 
expire 04/30/2026) 

18 Action on appointment of Gregg Thompson to Plan Commission (3-year term 
to expire 04/30/2026) 

19 Action on appointment of Vincent Chambers to Plan Commission (3-year term 
to expire 04/30/2026)  

20 Action on appointment of Patrick Juliana, as alternate to Plan Commission (3-
year term to end 04/30/2026) 

21 Approval of Operator’s Licenses: Joseph Meier, Allie Hedges, and Tracy 
Mcallister 

21 Adjourn 
 
I hereby certify that as the designee of the chief elected official of the Village of Somers, I posted this notice of 
the April 25, 2023, Village Board Meeting & Agenda in 1 public place & on the Village website.  
 

2 of 98 2023-04-21



   
 

Original Post Date: April 21, 2023 
 

Dated this 21st day of April 2023                                                              Brandi Baker, Clerk-Treasurer  
 
Requests from person with disabilities who need assistance to participate in this meeting should be made to the Clerk’s Office at 262-
859-2822 with as much notice as possible. Notice is hereby given that members of the Village Board may participate telephonically. 
Notice is hereby given that members of the Town Board may be in attendance for the sole purpose of gathering information. A 
quorum may be present. However, no Board action will be taken 

3 of 98 2023-04-21



   
 

   
 

Village of Somers  
Proceedings from the Regular Board Meeting April 11, 2023 
 

President Stoner called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 

President Stoner led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Present: President Stoner, Trustees Gregg Sinnen, Ben Harbach, Jackie Nelson, Jack 
Aupperle, Joe Smith, and Karl Ostby. Also present: Administrator Jason Peters, 
Clerk/Treasurer Brandi Baker, Assistant to the Administrator Kevin Poirier, and Attorney 
Jeff Davison.  

 
Consent and Approval of Minutes of Regular meetings on March 28, 2023, Vouchers dated 
March 30, 2023, and April 6, 2023, January 2023 ACH Payments, February 2023 ACH 
Payments, and March 2023 ACH Payments 

 
Trustee Harbach moved to approve the Minutes of Regular meetings on March 14, 2023, 

and Vouchers dated March 16, 2023, and March 23, 2023. 
 

Seconded by Trustee Ostby. Motion carried. 7-0 vote 
 

Correspondence 
  

None 
 
Citizen Comments 
 

Carson Wilkinson 6337 50th St. gave his congratulations to President Stoner and the elected 
Trustees. Thanked Trustee Sinnen for all his service on the Board and years on the Fire and 
Rescue Department. Expressed his disfavor in agenda number 8.  

 
President and Trustee Comments 
 

Trustee Nelson acknowledged Trustee Sinnen’s donation for the banner/flags. Thanked 
him for his years of service. Spoke on Jim Smith’s positive community impact and years 
as a Town Board Supervisor.  
 
Trustee Sinnen spoke about this being his last meeting. Thanked fellow Board members 
and Staff. Trustee Sinnen shared a quote from the League of Municipalities.  
 
Trustee Aupperle wished Trustee Sinnen well.  
 
Trustee Ostby wished Trustee Sinnen well and spoke on the new Plan Commission 
Candidates. 
 
Trustee Harbach Congratulated Trustee Sinnen for years served on the Board, appreciated 
all his input. 
 

4 of 98 2023-04-21



   
 

   
 

Trustee Smith Thanked Trustee Sinnen mentioned that he learned a lot serving on the 
Board with him.  
 
President Stoner will miss Trustee Sinnen’s friendship and their Monday morning drives. 
Also spoke on Jim Smith and what a great friend he was. 
 
  

Possible Motion to reconsider approval of bid received for 45th Avenue Lift Station and 63rd 
Avenue Lift Station 2023 UD #1 Capital Improvement Project to August Winter & Sons, Inc. 
which included deduct C to bring the total to $1,649,700.00 
 
 No motion made.  
 
Action on awarding bid received for 2023 Roadway Improvements Program (Somers 
Estates) to Payne & Dolan in the amount of $1,223,109.21. 
 

Trustee Aupperle moved to approve awarding bid received for the 2023 Roadway 
Improvements Program (Somers Estates) to Payne & Dolan in the amount of 
$1,223,109.20.  
 
Seconded by Trustee Sinnen. Motion carried 7-0 vote. 
 
President Stoner asked about the anticipated start/end date. 
 
Administrator Peters explained the pre-con meeting will be held Thursday and these 
answers will be discussed then. 

 
Discussion and possible action on proposed Resolution 2023-005, a Resolution of 
Appreciation for Gregg Sinnen on the Occasion of His Retirement from the Village of Somers 
Board of Trustees and to Serve as an Acknowledgement of His Years of Service to the Somers 
Community. 
 

Trustee Nelson moved to approve proposed Resolution 2023-005, a Resolution of 
Appreciation for Gregg Sinnen on the Occasion of His Retirement from the Village of 
Somers Board of Trustees and to Serve as an Acknowledgement of His Years of Service 
to the Somers Community 
 
Seconded by Trustee Aupperle. Motion carried. 6-0 vote. 
 
Trustee Sinnen abstained from vote. 
 
Trustee Nelson read Resolution 2023-005 out loud.  

 
Approval of Operator’s Licenses: Kiril Nonevich and Renee Stoyanov 
 

Trustee Aupperle moved to approve Operator Licenses: Kiril Nonevich and Renee 
Stoyanov. 
 

5 of 98 2023-04-21



   
 

   
 

Seconded by Trustee Harbach. Motion carried 7-0 vote. 
 
 
Adjourn 
 
 Trustee Sinnen moved to Adjourn at 5:49pm. 
 
 Seconded by Trustee Nelson. Motion carried. 7-0 vote 
  
 
  
Drafted this 12th day of April by Brandi Baker Clerk/Treasurer 
 
These minutes are not official until approved by the Village Board. 
 

6 of 98 2023-04-21



7 of 98 2023-04-21



8 of 98 2023-04-21



Report: March

2023 VILLAGE OF SOMERS INVESTMENT INCOME FEES

MONTH PERSHING LGIP-V LGIP-T TOTALS MONTH PERSHING LGIP-V LGIP-T TOTALS
JAN 9,300.31$                   14,636.72$           1,427.58$             25,364.61$         JAN 205.54$      205.54$      
FEB 46.71                          14,134.99             1,379.54               15,561.24           FEB 637.19        637.19        
MAR 50.65                          15,973.44             1,560.93               17,585.02           MAR 575.94        575.94        
APR -                      APR -              
MAY -                      MAY -              
JUN -                      JUN -              
JUL -                      JUL -              
AUG -                      AUG -              
SEP -                      SEP -              
OCT -                      OCT -              
NOV -                      NOV -              
DEC -                      DEC -              

2023 GT 9,397.67                     44,745.15             4,368.05               58,510.87           2023 GT 1,418.67     -              -            1,418.67     

1ST QTR 9,397.67$                   44,745.15$           4,368.05$             58,510.87$         1ST QTR 1,418.67$   -$            -$          1,418.67$   
2nd QTR -                              -                       -                       -                      2nd QTR -              -              -            -              
3rd QTR -                              -                       -                       -                      3rd QTR -              -              -            -              
4th QTR -                              -                       -                       -                      4th QTR -              -              -            -              

1 Change in Market Value = Income + Realized Gain/Loss + Unrealized Gain/Loss - Admin Expenses

2023 MONTHLY BALANCES

MONTH PERSHING LGIP-V LGIP-T
JAN 5,009,676.35$            4,056,941.22$      395,946.81$         
FEB 4,998,808.99              4,071,076.21        397,326.35           
MAR 5,029,843.53              4,087,049.65        401,984.48           
APR
MAY
JUN
JUL
AUG
SEP
OCT
NOV
DEC

YEARLY AVG 5,012,776.29$            4,071,689.03$      398,419.21$         

9 of 98 2023-04-21



10 of 98 2023-04-21



11 of 98 2023-04-21



12 of 98 2023-04-21



13 of 98 2023-04-21



14 of 98 2023-04-21



15 of 98 2023-04-21



16 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

 
 

VILLAGE OF SOMERS 
VILLAGE BOARD 

MEETING ITEM MEMORANDUM  
              
MEETING DATE:  April 25th, 2023 
 
TO:    Village President Stoner and Village Trustees 
 
PREPARED BY:  Jason J. Peters, Administrator 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  #7 Public Hearing on Resolution 2023-005, a Petition to Remove 

Territory from Utility District No. 1    
 
   #8 Action on Resolution 2023-005, An Order to Removing  

Territory from the Village of Somers Utility District No. 1   
              
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

In December of 2022, upon the request of the Nehls family, the Village released a 
conservation easement placed on the CSM that split the original lot.  The Nehls wanted to 
remove the conservation easement on Lot 3 so that a portion of their now combined lot 
could be sold to their neighbors, the Bonns.  When Nehls attempted to record a lot line 
adjustment to deed the small portion of land to the Bonns, the County informed the 
Village that the Bonns parcel was not located in UD #1.  The small strip of land (.321 
acres) attached to the Bonns parcel will need to be removed from UD #1 so the deed can 
be recorded. 

 
PRIOR ACTION TAKEN:  
 

On March 14th, Administrator Peters executed a petition to request the removal of the 
small portion of the lot from UD#1 and set a public hearing for April 25th.  The attached 
notice of the public hearing has been properly published.  The Board reviewed this matter 
at our April 18th Work Session.  

 
SUGGESTED ACTION/ACTION REQUESTED/COMMENTS:  
 

Staff would recommend approval of Resolution 2023-005.  In the event that the Village 
Board agrees with the suggested action, a suggested motion to approve would be as 
follows:   
 
 
 

17 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

#7  
 
“Motion to open public hearing” 

 
HOLD PUBLIC HEARING  
 

“Motion to close public hearing” 
 
 #8 

“Motion to approve Resolution 2023-005, An Order to Removing  
Territory from the Village of Somers Utility District No. 1”  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Petition to Remove 
 
 Notice of Public Hearing  
 
 Resolution 2023-005 
 
 Map of Area 
 
 
 
 
 

18 of 98 2023-04-21



19 of 98 2023-04-21



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
ON THE REMOVAL OF TERRITORY FROM THE
VILLAGE OF SOMERS UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1

 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Village Board of the Village of Somers,
Kenosha County, Wisconsin, sitting as commissioners of the Village of Somers Utility District
No. 1, will conduct a public hearing on the 25th day of April, 2023, at the Somers Village Hall
commencing at 5:30 p.m. or as soon thereafter as parties may be heard on the Petition of Jason
Peters, Village Administrator, for removal of certain real property from the Village of Somers
Utility District No. 1 pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes.  The legal description for the property to be
removed from the District is described in the attached Exhibit “A”.

Dated this 15th day of March, 2023.

Brandi Baker, Clerk/Treasurer
Village of Somers

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD. (Rev. 3/13/23)
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net
20 of 98 2023-04-21



EXHIBIT “A”

Land Conveyed from Parcel No. 83-4-223-064-0213 to Parcel No. 83-4-223-064-0300

Part of Lot 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 2597 (C.S.M. 2597), a map recorded in the office of
the Register of Deeds for Kenosha County, Wisconsin on October 31, 2007 as Document No.
1538458, being a part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 6, Township 2 North,
Range 23 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, in the Village of Somers, County of Kenosha,
State of Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at the Southeast corner of Lot 3 of said C.S.M. 2597, also being the Northeast corner
of Parcel B of Certified Survey Map No. 1615, run thence S87E51'34" W, 145.00 feet along a
South line of Lot 3 of said C.S.M. 2597; thence N01E29'11"W, 96.00 feet parallel with the West
line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 6; thence N87E30'03"E, 145.01 feet to a point on an East
line of Lot 3 of said C.S.M. 2597 being 25.00 feet from, as measured perpendicular to, a South
line of Lot 3 of said C.S.M. 2597; thence S01E29'11"E, 96.91 feet along an East line of Lot 3 of
said C.S.M. 2597 to the point of beginning.

Containing 13,985 square feet or 0.321 acre

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD. (Rev. 3/13/23)
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net
21 of 98 2023-04-21



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-005

AN ORDER REMOVING TERRITORY FROM THE
VILLAGE OF SOMERS UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1

The Village Board of the Village of Somers, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, sitting 
as commissioners of the Village of Somers Utility District No. 1 hereby orders the removal of 
certain real property, described with more particularity herein, as part of the Village of Somers 
Utility District No. 1 following public hearing conducted by the Board on April 25, 2023. In 
arriving at this decision, the Village Board finds as follows:

i. That the Petitioner, Jason Peters, Village Administrator, filed his Petition
on March 14, 2023, for removal of certain real property from the Village
of Somers Utility District No. 1 pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes.

ii. That following the filing of this Petition, the Village Clerk/Treasurer
scheduled and advertised as a Class 1 Notice of Public Hearing to be held
before this Board on April 25, 2023, concerning the Petitioner’s request;
further, that the Village Clerk/Treasurer mailed a notice to the Department
of Commerce and the Department of Natural Resources more than ten (10)
days prior to the Public hearing and that no adverse comments were
received by either of those departments.

iii. That a public hearing was conducted as described above by this Board on
April 25, 2023.

iv. That the public health, safety, convenience or welfare will be promoted by
the removal of the real property described hereafter from the Village of
Somers Utility District No. 1.

v. That the legal description for the property to be removed from the District
described on the attached Exhibit “A”.

Based upon the foregoing, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that copies of this Order establishing this removal
from the Village of Somers Utility District No. 1 shall be filed by the Village Clerk/Treasurer
with the Department of Natural Resources and that a true and correct copy of this Order shall be
recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds for Kenosha County, Wisconsin.

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD. (Rev. 3/13/23)
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net
22 of 98 2023-04-21



Dated at Somers, Wisconsin, this _____ day of _________________, 2023.

VILLAGE OF SOMERS

      By:_____________________________________
George Stoner, President

 Attest:_____________________________________
Brandi Baker, Clerk/Treasurer

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD. (Rev. 3/13/23)
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net
23 of 98 2023-04-21



EXHIBIT “A”

Land Conveyed from Parcel No. 83-4-223-064-0213 to Parcel No. 83-4-223-064-0300

Part of Lot 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 2597 (C.S.M. 2597), a map recorded in the office of
the Register of Deeds for Kenosha County, Wisconsin on October 31, 2007 as Document No.
1538458, being a part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 6, Township 2 North,
Range 23 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, in the Village of Somers, County of Kenosha,
State of Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at the Southeast corner of Lot 3 of said C.S.M. 2597, also being the Northeast corner
of Parcel B of Certified Survey Map No. 1615, run thence S87E51'34" W, 145.00 feet along a
South line of Lot 3 of said C.S.M. 2597; thence N01E29'11"W, 96.00 feet parallel with the West
line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 6; thence N87E30'03"E, 145.01 feet to a point on an East
line of Lot 3 of said C.S.M. 2597 being 25.00 feet from, as measured perpendicular to, a South
line of Lot 3 of said C.S.M. 2597; thence S01E29'11"E, 96.91 feet along an East line of Lot 3 of
said C.S.M. 2597 to the point of beginning.

Containing 13,985 square feet or 0.321 acre

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD. (Rev. 3/13/23)
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net
24 of 98 2023-04-21



DISCLAIMER  This map is neither a legally recorded map nor a survey and is not intended to be used as one.  This drawing is a compilation of records, data and information located in various state, county and municipal offices
and other sources affecting the area shown and is to be used for reference purposes only.  Kenosha County is not responsible for any inaccuracies herein contained.  If discrepancies are found, please contact Kenosha County.

¨
Date Printed: 12/2/2022

Legend

KENOSHA COUNTY
INTERACTIVE MAPPING

1 Inch =570 Feet

25 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

 
 

VILLAGE OF SOMERS 
VILLAGE BOARD 

MEETING ITEM MEMORANDUM  
              
MEETING DATE:  April 25th, 2023 
 
TO:    Village President Stoner and Village Trustees 
 
PREPARED BY:  Jason J. Peters, Administrator 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  #9 Public Hearing on Resolution 2023-006, A Resolution  

regarding FEMA’s recent Letter of Map Revision for the area 
known as Unnamed Tributary No. 8 to Kilbourn Ditch Overflow  

 
   #10 Action on Resolution 2023-006, A Resolution regarding  

FEMA’s recent Letter of Map Revision for the area known as 
Unnamed Tributary No. 8 to Kilbourn Ditch Overflow 

 
   #11 Action on proposed Ordinance 2023-009, An Ordinance to Repeal  

and Recreate Section ZN 4.08(1)(a) 5b of the Code of Ordinance 
of the Village of Somers Relating to the Official Maps and 
Revisions 

              
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

As a part of the Kwik Trip on CTH 142 project, the Kwik Trip submitted engineering to 
FEMA to receive a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR).  The process for the LOMR has 
been going on for several years.  On March 28th, 2023, the Village received notice from 
FEMA that the requested revision would be effective August 16, 2023.   

 
In order to be in compliance with NFIP the Village needs to take steps to adopt the 
revisions in our ordinance. The Village will need to hold a public hearing on the matter.  
The properly notice public hearing has been set for our April 25th Board Meeting. 
Attorney Davison, with the help of Planning Director Buehler has drafted the attached 
Resolution 2023-006 that will serve to document the steps taken to adopt the approved 
revisions and to notify the public. Finally, Attorney Davison has drafted proposed 
Ordinance 2023-009 that will serve to codify the approved revision.   

 
PRIOR ACTION TAKEN:  
 
 The Board reviewed this matter at our April 18th Work Session.  
 

26 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

 
SUGGESTED ACTION/ACTION REQUESTED/COMMENTS:  
 

Staff would recommend approval of Resolution 2023-006 and Ordinance No. 2023-009. 
In the event that the Village Board agrees with the suggested action, a suggested motion 
to approve would be as follows:   
 
#9  
 

“Motion to open public hearing” 
 

HOLD PUBLIC HEARING  
 

“Motion to close public hearing” 
  

#10 
  “Motion to approve Resolution 2023-006, A Resolution regarding  

FEMA’s recent Letter of Map Revision for the area known as Unnamed Tributary 
No. 8 to Kilbourn Ditch Overflow” 

 
 #11 
 

“Motion to waive first reading of Ordinance No. 2023-009” 
 
“Motion to approve proposed Ordinance 2023-009, An Ordinance to Repeal  
and Recreate Section ZN 4.08(1)(a) 5b of the Code of Ordinance of the Village of 
Somers Relating to the Official Maps and Revisions” 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Notice of Public Hearing  
 
 Proposed Resolution 2023-006 
 
 Proposed Ordinance 2023-009 
 

27 of 98 2023-04-21



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
ON THE ADOPTION BY THE VILLAGE OF SOMERS

OF THE LETTER OF MAP REVISION DETERMINATION
BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY

 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Village Board of the Village of Somers,
Kenosha County, Wisconsin, will conduct a public hearing on the 25th day of April, 2023, at the
Somers Village Hall, 7511 12th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53144, commencing at 5:30 p.m. or
as soon thereafter as parties may be heard on the adoption by the Village of Somers of that
certain Letter of Map Revision Determination made by the Federal Emergency Management
Agency.  A copy of the Letter of Map Revision Determination is available for inspection in the
office of the Village Clerk/Treasurer at the Village Hall. 

Dated this 29th day of March, 2023.

Brandi Baker, Clerk/Treasurer
Village of Somers

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD. (Rev. 3/29/23)
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net
28 of 98 2023-04-21



006

29 of 98 2023-04-21



30 of 98 2023-04-21



31 of 98 2023-04-21



32 of 98 2023-04-21



33 of 98 2023-04-21



34 of 98 2023-04-21



35 of 98 2023-04-21



36 of 98 2023-04-21



37 of 98 2023-04-21



(Rev. 4/5/23)

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-009

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND RECREATE SECTION ZN 4.08(1)(a)5b
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF SOMERS

RELATING TO OFFICIAL MAPS AND REVISIONS 
______________________________________________________________________________

The Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Somers, Kenosha County,

Wisconsin, hereby repeals and recreates Section ZN 4.08(1)(a)5b of the Code of Ordinances of

the Village of Somers relating to the official maps and revisions to read as follows:

b Official Maps & Revisions.  The boundaries of all floodplain districts are
designated as AE, A and AH Zones based on flood elevations derived from the
flood profiles in the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) volume numbers 55059CV001B
and 55059CV002B, effective March 7, 2017 Any change to the base flood
elevations (BFE) or any changes to the boundaries of the floodplain in the FIS or
on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) must be reviewed and approved by
the DNR and FEMA through the Letter of Map Change process (see sub. (f)
Amendments) before it is effective.  No changes to RFE's on non-FEMA maps
shall be effective until approved by the DNR. These maps and revisions are on
file in the office of the Village Clerk of the Village of Somers.  If more than one
(1) map or revision is referenced, the most restrictive information shall apply.

1) All areas covered by the regional flood or base flood as shown on the
Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), as approved by DNR and FEMA. Base
flood elevations are derived from the flood profiles in the Flood
Insurance Study (FIS) volume numbers 55059CV001B and
55059CV002B, effective March 7, 2017 and are shown as AE, A, and AH
Zones on the FIRM.  The FIRM Map Panels affected are: 55059C0062D,
55059C0064D, 5509C0066D, 55059C0067D, 55059C0068D,
55059C0069D, 55059C0086D, 55059C0087D, 55059C0088D,
55059C0089D, 55059C0091D, 55059C0093D, 55059C0177D,
55059C0181D, 55059C0182D, 55059C0201D, 55059C0202D dated June

19, 2012, FIRM Map Panel 55059C0184E dated March 7, 2017 and
FIRM Map Panel 55059C0177D revised June 14, 2021.

2) Letter of Map Revision (LOMR): Case No.: 22-05-3273P Effective Date:
August 16, 2023.

These official floodplain maps and studies were approved by the DNR
and FEMA and are on file in the office of the Village Clerk of the Village
of Somers. If more than one (1) map or revision is referenced, the most
restrictive information shall apply.

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD.
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net
38 of 98 2023-04-21



(Rev. 4/5/23)

Dated at Somers, Wisconsin, this _____ day of __________, 2023.

VILLAGE OF SOMERS

      By:___________________________________
George Stoner, President

             Attest:___________________________________
Brandi Baker, Clerk/Treasurer

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD.
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net
39 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

 
 

VILLAGE OF SOMERS 
VILLAGE BOARD 

MEETING ITEM MEMORANDUM  
              
MEETING DATE:  April 25th, 2023 
 
TO:    Village President Stoner and Village Trustees 
 
PREPARED BY:  Jason J. Peters, Administrator 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  #12  Plan Commission Recommendations (Funk Trust & Golden  

Oil): 
 

a. Action on Request by: Arlo F and Jeanne L Funk Trust, 
27822 Santa Anita Blvd, Wesley Chapel, FL 33544 
(Owner), Paul Bhardwaj, Golden Oil LLC, 1170 22nd 
Ave., Kenosha, WI 53140 (Agent), requests a rezoning 
from A-1 Agricultural Preservation Dist. to A-4 
Agricultural Land Holding Dist. & A-1 Agricultural 
Preservation Dist., on Tax Parcel #82-4-222-073-0102, 
located in the SW ¼ of Section 7, T2N, R22E, Village of 
Somers. (For informational purposes only, this property is 
located at the NE corner of CTH E and East Frontage Rd.) 

 
b. Action on Request by: Arlo F and Jeanne L Funk Trust, 

27822 Santa Anita Blvd, Wesley Chapel, FL 33544 
(Owner), Paul Bhardwaj, Golden Oil LLC, 1170 22nd 
Ave., Kenosha, WI 53140 (Agent), requests approval of a 
Certified Survey Map (undated CSM prepared by Ryan 
Wilgreen of Excel Engineering) to create one (1) 25.00-
acre Lot and one (1) 37.027-acre Lot from Tax Parcel # 82-
4-222-073-0102, located in the SW ¼ of Section 7, T2N, 
R22E, Village of Somers. (For informational purposes 
only, this property is located at the NE corner of CTH E 
and East Frontage Rd.)    

              
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

The Plan Commission has previously reviewed a concept for Golden Oil’s potential 
project at the NE corner of CTH E and East Frontage Road (82-4-222-073-0102). Golden 
Oil is still working on the official submission for the project, but in the meantime, they 
are working with Funk Trust to purchase the land they will need.  Golden Oil will be 

40 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

purchasing 25 acres and the Funk Trust will retain the remaining 37.027 acres.  In order 
to facilitate the sale, the lot will need to be split.  The parties have submitted a request for 
rezone and a land division through CSM.    
 
In this case, the rezone would be from A-1 to A-1 and A-4.  The parcel retained by the 
Funk Trust would remain A-1 and the new 25-acre parcel would become A-4.  As you 
may recall the Village established the A-4 district in 2021 to serve as placeholder for ag 
land that is split and no longer meets the requirements of A-1 though A-3.  

 
PRIOR ACTION TAKEN:  
 

The Plan Commission heard the above-mentioned request at their April 10th meeting and 
held the requisite public hearings.  No major issues were raised. The Plan Commission’s 
recommendation was to approve the request for rezone (6-0) and to split the lot into two 
parcels through the proposed CSM (6-0).  

 
 The Board reviewed this matter at our April 18th Work Session. No issues were raised.  
 
SUGGESTED ACTION/ACTION REQUESTED/COMMENTS:  
 

Administration would recommend approval. Again, the approval of this rezoning and 
CSM does not serve as the entitlements that Golden Oil will need for their proposed 
project.  Finally, this step merely serves as a vehicle for Golden Oil to purchase the land 
they want to use to move forward with their project. In the event that the Village Board 
agrees with the suggested action, a suggested motion to approve would be as follows:   
 

#12a  
 

“Motion to approve request by: Arlo F and Jeanne L Funk Trust, 27822 
Santa Anita Blvd, Wesley Chapel, FL 33544 (Owner), Paul Bhardwaj, 
Golden Oil LLC, 1170 22nd Ave., Kenosha, WI 53140 (Agent), requests a 
rezoning from A-1 Agricultural Preservation Dist. to A-4 Agricultural 
Land Holding Dist. & A-1 Agricultural Preservation Dist., on Tax Parcel 
#82-4-222-073-0102, located in the SW ¼ of Section 7, T2N, R22E, 
Village of Somers, subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. Subject to final Certified Survey Map being reviewed and 
approved by Village Planning; and 

 
2. Subject to final Certified Survey Map being reviewed and 

approved by Village Engineer.” 
 

#12b 
 

Motion to approve request by: Arlo F and Jeanne L Funk Trust, 27822 
Santa Anita Blvd, Wesley Chapel, FL 33544 (Owner), Paul Bhardwaj, 
Golden Oil LLC, 1170 22nd Ave., Kenosha, WI 53140 (Agent), requests 
approval of a Certified Survey Map (undated CSM prepared by Ryan 
Wilgreen of Excel Engineering) to create one (1) 25.00-acre Lot and one 
(1) 37.027-acre Lot from Tax Parcel # 82-4-222-073-0102, located in the 

41 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

SW ¼ of Section 7, T2N, R22E, Village of Somers. subject to the following 
conditions:  
 

1. Subject to final Certified Survey Map being reviewed and 
approved by Village Planning; and 

 
2. Subject to final Certified Survey Map being reviewed and 

approved by Village Engineer.” 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Planning Memo dated 03/28/2023 
  
 Planning Commission Minutes 04/10/2023 – Highlighted  
 
 Application for Rezone  
 
 Application for CSM 
 
 

42 of 98 2023-04-21



COUNTY OF KENOSHA 

 Division of Planning & Development 
 

  
 
 
 

 
RPT 2023-03-28 - Golden Oil 

- 1 - 

Andy M. Buehler, Director 
Division of Planning & Development 

19600 75th Street, Suite 185-3 
Bristol, WI 53104-9772 

 (262) 857-1895 

 
TO:  Village of Somers Plan Commission 
FROM:  Luke Godshall, Senior Land Use Planner 
RPT DATE: 03-28-23  
MTG DATE: 04-10-23 
APPLN DATE: 02-13-23 
RE: Golden Oil LLC CSM & Rezoning   
 

PROJECT/SITE INFO: 

1. Petitioner/Agent:  Paul Bhardwaj, Golden Oil LLC  
2. Property Owner:  Arlo F and Jeanne L Funk Trust 
3. Location/Address: NE corner of CTH E & East Frontage Road 
4. Tax key Number(s): 82-4-222-073-0102 
5. Area:  62.02 acres 
6. Existing Zoning:  A-1 Agricultural Preservation Dist., FPO Floodplain Overlay Dist. 
7. Proposed Zoning: A-4 Agricultural Land Holding Dist., A-1 Agricultural Preservation Dist., FPO 

Floodplain Overlay Dist. 
8. Existing Land Use: Business/Industrial Park 
9. Proposed Land Use: Business/Industrial Park 
 

PROJECT OVERVIEW: 
The Petitioner is proposing to split the subject parcel into one (1) 25-acre Lot and one (1) 37.027-acre 
remnant Lot via Certified Survey Map.  The Petitioner intents to purchase Lot 1 of the CSM to be used 
as the site for potential future development, while Lot 2 of CSM would remain owned by the current 
parcel owner.  A rezoning of Lot 1 of the CSM is being requested from A-1 Agricultural Preservation 
District to A-4 Agricultural Land Holding District. 

PLANNER COMMENTS: 
The A-4 zoning on Lot 1 of the proposed CSM will essentially act as a “placeholder” zoning district.  A 
zoning change will eventually need to be requested from A-4 into an appropriate zoning category 
once specific plans and uses for the future development of the Lot are finalized by the Petitioner. 
 

The submitted Certified Survey Map generally complies with the Village of Somers Land Division and 
Platting Control Ordinance.  Noted below are several recommendations for revisions to be made to the 
CSM prior to its recordation in the Kenosha County Register of Deeds office. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Should the Plan Commission choose to recommend approval of this project, staff would recommend 
the following conditions: 
 

1. The Certified Survey Map shall be subject to the following: 
 
a. Subject to revising the CSM to address review comments from the Wisconsin Department 

of Administration’s March 13, 2023 review letter. 
 

43 of 98 2023-04-21



COUNTY OF KENOSHA 

 Division of Planning & Development 
 

  
 
 
 

 
RPT 2023-03-28 - Golden Oil 

- 2 - 

Andy M. Buehler, Director 
Division of Planning & Development 

19600 75th Street, Suite 185-3 
Bristol, WI 53104-9772 

 (262) 857-1895 

b. Subject to making the following revisions to the CSM: 
1. Add date of map. 
2. Add the name & address of the developer/subdivider to Sheet 1 of the CSM. 
3. Add a note indicating the proposed Lots will be served by municipal sewer. 
4. On Sheet 1, revise the 100 year floodplain boundary line to match that as shown on 

FEMA Map No. 55059C0064D, specifically a portion of the northeast area of Lot 1 which 
is outside of Zone “AE”. 

5. On Sheet 1, add shading to areas indicated as Flood Zone “AE” (Flood Zone “X” areas are 
noted as “unshaded”, implying that other areas are shaded). 

6. On Sheet 2, revise the note to indicate the date wetlands were delineated by Evergreen 
Consultants LLC. 

7. Add existing and proposed topographic contours at vertical intervals of not more than 
two feet to the face of the CSM. 

8. Add a 50’x50’ vision corner easement at the southwest corner of Lot 1. 
9. Add the following vision corner easement note to the face of the CSM:  

“No obstructions, such as structures, fences, parking or vegetation shall be 
permitted in any business, manufacturing or institutional district between 
the heights of two (2) feet and ten (10) feet above the plane through the 
centerline of the road within the triangular space formed by any two (2) 
existing or proposed intersecting street or alley right-of-way lines and a line 
joining points on such lines located a minimum of fifteen (15) feet from the 
road right-of-way. In the case of any federal, state or county highway or 
village road intersection with any other federal, state or county highway or 
village road or railways, the corner cutoff distances establishing the 
triangular vision clearance space shall be increased to fifty (50) feet.” 

 

10. On Sheet 6, remove the “Plan Commission Approval” signature area (only Village Board 
approval is required). 
 

c. Subject to sending an electronic copy of the revised CSM showing the aforementioned 
changes to the Kenosha County Department of Planning and Development office to receive 
sign-off prior to the surveyor preparing the recordable CSM document for signatures.  The 
county contact is Luke Godshall who can be contacted at the following e-mail address: 
luke.godshall@kenoshacounty.org. 
 

d. No land division shall be recorded if any portion or part of the parent parcel has any 
unpaid taxes or outstanding special assessments without prior approval of the local and 
Kenosha County Treasurer. 

 

e. Subject to the Certified Survey Map (CSM) being recorded with the Kenosha County 
Register of Deeds within twelve (12) months of receiving approval from the Somers Village 
Board. 

 

44 of 98 2023-04-21



 

 
Village of Somers 
Proceeding from the Village Plan 
Commission Meeting 
April 10, 2023 

 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
Chairman Stoner called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  

 
Present:  

• Chairman George Stoner  
• Commissioner Ron Grimes 
• Commissioner Bob Lee 
• Commissioner Scott Fredrick 
• Commissioner Sandee Gardinier 
• Commissioner Aiello 

 
Absent: Don Boxx 

 
Staff present in person: Administrator Jason Peters, Assistant to the Administrator Kevin 
Poirier, Trustees Gregg Sinnen, Ben Harbach and Karl Ostby, Joe Smith 
Kenosha County Planners: Luke Godshall 
Others: Keller Architect Nathan Laurent, Dale Tode (realtor/broker) 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance  

 
Chairman Stoner led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
3. Approve Minutes of March 13, 2022 

 
Commissioner Aiello moved to approve to the minutes.  
 
Seconded by Commissioner Lee. Motion carried. 6-0 vote.  

 
4. Correspondence 

 
None 

 
5. Citizen Comments 

 
None 

 

45 of 98 2023-04-21



6. Rezone: Public Hearing and Action on Request by: Arlo F and Jeanne L Funk Trust, 
27822 Santa Anita Blvd, Wesley Chapel, FL 33544 (Owner), Paul Bhardwaj, Golden Oil 
LLC, 1170 22nd Ave., Kenosha, WI 53140 (Agent), requests a rezoning from A-1 
Agricultural Preservation Dist. to A-4 Agricultural Land Holding Dist. & A-1 Agricultural 
Preservation Dist., on Tax Parcel #82-4-222-073-0102, located in the SW ¼ of Section 7, 
T2N, R22E, Village of Somers. 
 
Public comments: none 

 
Commissioner Lee moves to accept the request.  
 
Commissioner Fredrick seconds the motion. 
 
Motion carried 6-0 vote.  

 
7. Land Division (Certified Survey Map): Public Hearing and Action on Request by: 

Arlo F and Jeanne L Funk Trust, 27822 Santa Anita Blvd, Wesley Chapel, FL 33544 
(Owner), Paul Bhardwaj, Golden Oil LLC, 1170 22nd Ave., Kenosha, WI 53140 (Agent), 
requests approval of a Certified Survey Map (undated CSM prepared by Ryan Wilgreen 
of Excel Engineering) to create one (1) 25.00-acre Lot and one (1) 37.027-acre Lot from 
Tax Parcel # 82-4-222-073-0102, located in the SW ¼ of Section 7, T2N, R22E, Village 
of Somers. 

 
Public comments: none 

 
Commissioner Lee opens the public hearing . 
 
Commissioner Fredrick and Aiello second the motion 

 
Administrator Peters explains the implication of the land division explains it will allow 
the developer to do buy the land. President Stoner mentions there are a couple projects at 
that location. Administrator Peters reminds commissioners that the developer presented a 
concept plan last month. 

 
Motion carried 6-0 vote.  

 
8. Adjourn 

 
Commissioner Aiello moved to adjourn.  
 
Seconded by Commissioner Fredrick.  
 
Motion carried 6-0 vote.  
 

Drafted April 12, 2023.  

46 of 98 2023-04-21



These minutes are not official until approved by the Plan Commission. Submitted by Kevin 
Poirier  

47 of 98 2023-04-21



sept. 2021

VILLAGE OF SOMERS
Department of Planning and Development

REZONING APPLICATION

(a) Property Owner's Name.

Sidney A. Funk, as Successor Trustee of the Arlo F. and Jeanne L. Funk Trust u/a/d 12-06-95

eco
SignaturPrint Name:

Mailing Address. 27822 Santa Anita Blvd

City. Wesley Chapel 33544FL Zip:State:

Phone Number:B 2 E-mail (optional):

Note: Unless the property owner's signature can be obtained in the above space, a letter of agent status signed by the legal

property owner must be submitted if you are a tenant, leaseholder, or authorized agent representing the legal owner, allowing

you to act on their behalf,

(b) Agent'sName (if applicable):

Print Name. Paul Bhardwaj

Golden Oil LLCBusiness Name:

1 170 22nd AvenueMailing Address:

Signature:

City: Kenosha State:

(6¯1 E-mail (optional):Phone Number:

WI Zip, 53140

paul@goldenoilcompany.com

(c) Tax key number(s) of property to be rezoned:

82-4-222-073-0102

Property Address of property to be rezoned:

No assigned address

Lot 1 A1 to A4; Lot 2 to Remain A1

(d) Proposed use (a statement of the type, extent, area, etc. of any development project):

A-4 - Potential future development for Lot 1. Lot 2 to remain A-I zone.

Page 1 of 348 of 98 2023-04-21



REZONING APPLICATION

(e) Check the box next to any and all of the zoning district classifications present on the subject property.

[3

A-I Agricultural Preservation District
A-2 General A ricultural District
A-3 Agricultural Related Manufacturing, Warehousing and
Marketin District
A-4 A ricultural Land Holdin District
AE-I Agricultural Equestrian Cluster Single-Family
District
R-I Rural Residential District
R-2 Suburban Sin le-FamiI Residential District
R-3 Urban Sin Ie-Famil Residential District
R-4 Urban Sin le-Famil Residential District
R-4.5 Urban Sin le-FamiI Residential District
R-5 Urban Single-Family Residential District

R-6 Urban Sin Ie-FamiI Residential District
R-7 Suburban Two-Family and Three-Family Residential
District
R-8 Urban Two-Famil Residential District
R-9 Multi le-Famil Residential District
R-IO Multi Ie-FamiI Residential District
R-11 Mutti le-Famil Residential District
R-12 Mobile HomefManufacturedHome Park-Subdivision
District

B-l Nei hborhood Business District
B-2 Communit Business District
B-3 Highway Business District

B-4 Planned Business District
B-5 Wholesale Trade and Warehousing District

BP-I Business Park District
B-94 Interstate Hi hwa 94 S ecial Use Business District
M-I Limited Manufacturin District
M-2 Hea Manufacturin District

M-3 Mineral Extraction District
M-4 Sanitary Landfill and HazardousWaste Disposal
District
I-I Institutional District
PR-I Park-Recreational District

C-1 Lowland Resource Conservanc District
C-2 U land Resource Conservanc District
FPO Flood lain Overla District

PUD Planned Unit Develo ment Overla District
AO Airport Overlay District

RC Rural Cluster Develo ment Overla District

(f) Check the box next to any and all of the proposed zoning district classifications proposed for the subject property

A-I A ricultural Preservation District
A-2 General A ricultural District
A-3 Agricultural Related Manufacturing, Warehousing and
Marketin District

A-4A ricultural Land Holdin District Lot 1

AE-I AgriculturalEquestrian Cluster Single-Family
District
R-I Rural Residential District

R-2 Suburban Sin le-FamiI Residential District
R-3 Urban Sin Ie-Famil Residential District
R-4 Urban Sin Ie-Famil Residential District
R45 Urban Sin le-FamiI Residential District
R-5 Urban Single-Family Residential District

R-6 Urban Sin Ie-Famil Residential District
R-7 Suburban Two-Family and Three-Family Residential
District
R-8 Urban Two-Famil Residential District
R-9 Multi Ie-Famil Residential District
R-IO Multi Ie-FamiI Residential District
R-11 Multi le-FamiI Residential District
R-12 Mobile Home/Manufactured Home Park-Subdivision
District

B-l Nei hborhood Business District
B-2 Communit Business District

B-3 Highway Business District

B4 Planned Business District

C] B-5 VVhoIesaIe Trade and Warehousing District

BP-I Business Park District
8-94 Interstate Hi hwa 94 S ecial Use Business District
M-I Limited Manufacturin District

M-2 Hea Manufacturin District

M-3 Mineral Extraction District

M-4 Sanitary Landfill and Hazardous Waste Disposal
District
I-I Institutional District
PR-I Park-Recreational District

C-1 Lowland Resource Conservanc District
C-2 U land Resource Conservanc District
FPO Flood lain Overla District

PUD Planned Unit Develo ment Overla District
AO Airport Overlay District

RC Rural Cluster Develo ment Overla District

Page 2 of 349 of 98 2023-04-21



REZONING APPLICATION

(g) Your requestmust be consistent with the existing planned land use category as shown on Map 65 of the adopted OMult1„
Junsd'ctlonal Comprehensive Plan for Kenosha County 2035".

The existing planned land use category for the subject property is:

Farmland Protection

General A ricultural and O en Land
Rural-Densi Residential
A ricultural and Rural Densi Residential
Suburban-Densi Residential
Medium-Densi Residential
Hi h-Densi Residential
Mixed Use
Commercial
Office/Professional Services
Industrial
Business/lndustnal Park

Governmental and Institutional

Park and Recreational
Street and Hi hwa Ri ht-of-Wa
Other Trans ortation Communication and Utili
Extractive
Landfill
Prima Environmental Corridor
Seconda Environmental Corridor
Isolated Natural Resource Area
Other Conservan Land to be Preserved
Nonfarmed Wetland
Surface Water

(h) Attach a plot plan or survey plat of property to be rezoned (showing location. dimensions. zoning of adjacent properties.
existing uses and buildings of adjacent properties, floodways and floodplains)—drawnto scale.

(i) The Village of Somers Department of Planning and Development may ask for additional information.

O) The name of the County Supervisor of the district wherein the property is located (District Map):

Supemsory District Number: 19 County Board Supervisor:

(k) The fee specified in Section 12.05-8 of this ordinance.

Request for Rezoning Petition (payable to "Kenosha County").

(For other fees see the Fee Schedule)

Note: Agricultural use Conversion Charge

Brian Bashaw

. $1,450.00

The use value assessment system values agricultural land based on the income that would be generated from its rental for agricultural use
rather than its fair market value. When a person converts agricultural land to a non-agricultural use (e.g. residential or commercial
development), that person may owe a conversion charge. To obtain more information about the use value law or conversion charge. contact
the Wisconsin Department of Revenue's Equalization Section at 608-266-2149 or visit revenue, yi qov/fag#ßlf/useassmt html-

Note that the act of rezoning property from an agricultural zoning district to a non-agricultural zoning district does not necessarily trigger the

agricultural use conversion charge. It is when the use of the property changes from agricultural that the conversion charge is assessed.

Page 3 of 3
50 of 98 2023-04-21



ARCHITECTS ● ENGINEERS ● SURVEYORS

Always aBetter Plan

100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, WI 54935
Phone: (920) 926-9800
www.EXCELENGINEER.com

JOB NO. 2266000

51 of 98 2023-04-21



Zoning Legal Description 
 

Part of the Northeast 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 7, 
Township 2 North, Range 22 East, Village of Somers, Kenosha County, Wisconsin being more 
particularly described as follows: 

 
Commencing at Southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 7; thence North 

01°‐59’‐09” West along the East line of said Southwest 1/4, a distance of 81.20 feet to the 
North right‐of‐way line of County Trunk Highway “E”, said point being the point of beginning; 
thence continuing North 01°‐59’‐09” West along said East line, a distance of 1,413.71 feet; 
thence South 74°‐59’‐34” West, a distance of 1,011.29 feet to the Easterly right‐of‐way line of 
the East Frontage Road; thence Southeasterly 782.01 feet along said Easterly line on a curve to 
the right having a radius of 1,475.00 feet, the chord of said curve bears South 17°‐26’‐33” East, 
a chord distance of 772.88 feet; thence South 05°‐18’‐28” West along said Easterly line, a 
distance of 144.38 feet; thence South 05°‐07’‐00” East along said Easterly line, a distance of 
280.35 feet; thence South 41°‐56’‐34” East along said Easterly line, a distance of 21.47 feet to 
the North right‐of‐way line of County Trunk Highway “E”; thence North 87°‐49’‐48” East along 
said North line, a distance of 628.00 feet; thence North 89°‐22’‐39” East along said North line, a 
distance of 140.58 feet to the point of beginning and containing 25.000 acres (1,089,000 sq. ft.) 
of land more or less. 
 

52 of 98 2023-04-21



May 2015

VILLAGE OF SOMERS
Department of Planning & Development

LAND DIVISION APPLICATION
In order for applications to be processed, all information, drawings, application signatures, and
fees required shall be submitted at time of application.

Please check the appropriate box below for the type of application being submitted:

Certified Survey Map
Subdivision Preliminary Plat
Subdivision Final Plat
Condominium Plat

Applicant is: ÜProperty Owner ÜSubdividerOOther Purchaser

Applicant Name:

Mailing Address:

Golden Oil LLC - Paul Bhardwaj

1170 22nd Avenue

Kenosha, WI 53140

82-4-222-073-0102Tax Parcel Number(s):

Acreage of Project:

Location of Property (including legal description):

Date

Phone # 262-425-tæ/6'35

62.027

Northeast corner of East Frontage Road & CTH E. See attached legal description.

Subdivision/Development Name (if applicable): Arlo F. and Jeanne L. Funk Trust

Existing Zoning: Proposed Zoning: Lot 1 - A4; Lot 2- A1

53 of 98 2023-04-21



Village Land Use Plan District Designation(s) (if applicable):

Present

Proposed

Business/lndustrial Park

No change

Present Use(s) of Property:

Proposed Use(s) of Property:

Vacant agricultural land

Future business use

The subdivision abuts or adjoins a state trunk highway..

The subdivision will be served by public sewer .

The subdivision abuts a county trunk highway .

The subdivision contains shoreland/floodplain areas

LAND DIVISION
APPLICATION

Yes (x) No( )

. Yes (x) No( )

Yes (x) No( )

. Yes ( x ) )

The subdivision lies within the extra-territorial plat (ETP) authority
area of a nearby Village or City Yes( ) No (x)
*Applicant is responsible for submitting to the ETP authority any fees and documentation
needed to obtain a recommendation.

REQUIRE SIGNATURE S FOR ALL APPLICATIONS.

Prop Owne 'sSignature

Property Owner's Signature

REQUIRED APPLICABLE SIGNATURES:

Appli tis i nature

DeVéiop .,r's Signature

21' o /zoz
Date

Date

Date

ate

54 of 98 2023-04-21



LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Part of the Northwest 1/4, Northeast 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 7,
Township 2 North, Range 22 East, Village of Somers, Kenosha County, Wisconsin being more particularly
described as follows:

Commencing at Southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 7; thence North 010-59'-09"
West along the East line of said Southwest 1/4, a distance of 81.20 feet to the North right-of-way line of
County Trunk Highway "E", said point being the point of beginning; thence continuing North 010-59'-09"
West along said East line, a distance of 2,570.30 feet to the Northeast corner of said Southwest 1/4; thence
South 870-47'-29" West along the North line of said Southwest 1/4, a distance of I , 151.84 feet to the East
line of Certified Survey Map No. 1919, recorded in the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office as
Document No. 1038241; thence South 010-44'-34" East along said East line, a distance of 600.00 feet to the

South line of said Certified Survey Map; thence South 870-47'-29" West along said South line, a distance of

505.73 feet to the Easterly right-of-way line of the East Frontage Road; thence Southeasterly 351.82 feet
along said Easterly line on a curve to the left having a radius of 1,335.00 feet, the chord of said curve bears
South 400-14-37" East, a chord distance of 350.80 feet; thence South 470-47'-36" East along said Easterly
line, a distance of 292.63 feet; thence North 420-12-24" East along said Easterly line, a distance of 10.00
feet; thence Southeasterly 325.41 feet along said Easterly line on a curve to the right having a radius of
1 ,475.00 feet, the chord of said curve bears South 410-28'-23" East, a chord distance of 324.75 feet; thence
North 870-48'-38" East along said Easterly line, a distance of 34.30 feet; thence South 010-59'-00" East
along said Easterly line, a distance of 55.22 feet; thence Southeasterly 782.01 feet along said Easterly line
on a curve to the right having a radius of 11475.00 feet, the chord of said curve bears South 170-26'-33"
East, a chord distance of 772.88 feet; thence South 050-18'-28" West along said Easterly line, a distance of

144.38 feet: thence South 050-07'-00" East along said Easterly line, a distance of 280.35 feet; thence South
410-56'-34" East along said Easterly line, a distance of 21.47 feet to the North right-of-way line of County
Trunk Highway "E"; thence North 870-49'-48" East along said North line, a distance of 628.00 feet; thence
North 890-22'-39" East along said North line, a distance of 140.58 feet to the point of beginning and
containing 62.027 acres (2,701 ,904 sq. ft.) of land more or less.

55 of 98 2023-04-21



ARCHITECTS ● ENGINEERS ● SURVEYORS

Always aBetter Plan

100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, WI 54935
Phone: (920) 926-9800
www.EXCELENGINEER.com

JOB NO. 2266000

TOTAL AREA
62.027 ACRES

2,701,904 SQ. FT.

56 of 98 2023-04-21



ARCHITECTS ● ENGINEERS ● SURVEYORS

Always aBetter Plan

100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, WI 54935
Phone: (920) 926-9800
www.EXCELENGINEER.com

JOB NO. 2266000

57 of 98 2023-04-21



ARCHITECTS ● ENGINEERS ● SURVEYORS

Always aBetter Plan

100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, WI 54935
Phone: (920) 926-9800
www.EXCELENGINEER.com

JOB NO. 2266000

58 of 98 2023-04-21



SHEET 4 OF 6 SHEETS 
 

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. ______ 
 

PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4, NORTHEAST 1/4  
& SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4,  

SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST,  
VILLAGE OF SOMERS, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

 
 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE 

 
I, Ryan Wilgreen, Professional Land Surveyor, hereby certify: 

 
That I have surveyed, divided and mapped a parcel of land described below. 

       
That I have made such Certified Survey under the direction of Arlo F. and Jeanne L. Funk Trust 

bounded and described as follows: 
  

Part of the Northwest 1/4, Northeast 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 7, 
Township 2 North, Range 22 East, Village of Somers, Kenosha County, Wisconsin being more particularly 
described as follows: 

 
Commencing at Southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 7; thence North 01°-59’-09” 

West along the East line of said Southwest 1/4, a distance of 81.20 feet to the North right-of-way line of 
County Trunk Highway “E”, said point being the point of beginning; thence continuing North 01°-59’-09” 

West along said East line, a distance of 2,570.30 feet to the Northeast corner of said Southwest 1/4; thence 
South 87°-47’-29” West along the North line of said Southwest 1/4, a distance of 1,151.84 feet to the East 

line of Certified Survey Map No. 1919, recorded in the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office as 
Document No. 1038241; thence South 01°-44’-34” East along said East line, a distance of 600.00 feet to the 

South line of said Certified Survey Map; thence South 87°-47’-29” West along said South line, a distance of 

505.73 feet to the Easterly right-of-way line of the East Frontage Road; thence Southeasterly 351.82 feet 
along said Easterly line on a curve to the left having a radius of 1,335.00 feet, the chord of said curve bears 
South 40°-14’-37” East, a chord distance of 350.80 feet; thence South 47°-47’-36” East along said Easterly 

line, a distance of 292.63 feet; thence North 42°-12’-24” East along said Easterly line, a distance of 10.00 

feet; thence Southeasterly 325.41 feet along said Easterly line on a curve to the right having a radius of 
1,475.00 feet, the chord of said curve bears South 41°-28’-23” East, a chord distance of 324.75 feet; thence 

North 87°-48’-38” East along said Easterly line, a distance of 34.30 feet; thence South 01°-59’-00” East 

along said Easterly line, a distance of 55.22 feet; thence Southeasterly 782.01 feet along said Easterly line 
on a curve to the right having a radius of 1,475.00 feet, the chord of said curve bears South 17°-26’-33” 

East, a chord distance of 772.88 feet; thence South 05°-18’-28” West along said Easterly line, a distance of 

144.38 feet; thence South 05°-07’-00” East along said Easterly line, a distance of 280.35 feet; thence South 

41°-56’-34” East along said Easterly line, a distance of 21.47 feet to the North right-of-way line of County 

Trunk Highway “E”; thence North 87°-49’-48” East along said North line, a distance of 628.00 feet; thence 

North 89°-22’-39” East along said North line, a distance of 140.58 feet to the point of beginning and 

containing 62.027 acres (2,701,904 sq. ft.) of land more or less. 
  

That such is a correct representation of all the exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land 
division thereof made. 
 

That I have fully complied with the provisions of Section 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the 
Subdivision Ordinance of the Village of Somers in surveying, dividing and mapping the same. 

 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Ryan Wilgreen, P.L.S. No. S-2647 
ryan.w@excelengineer.com 
Excel Engineering, Inc. 
Fond du Lac, Wisconsin 54935 
Project Number: 2266000 

 

59 of 98 2023-04-21



SHEET 5 OF 6 SHEETS 
 

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. ______ 
 

PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4, NORTHEAST 1/4  
& SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4,  

SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST,  
VILLAGE OF SOMERS, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

 
 

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE 
 

Arlo F. and Jeanne L. Funk Trust, as owner, hereby certify that I have caused the land described on 
this map to be surveyed, divided and mapped as represented on this map. I further certify that this map is 
required by s.236.10 or s.236.12 to be submitted to the following for approval or objection: 
 

1. Village of Somers 
 

  WITNESS the hand and seal of said owner this _______ day of _________________, 20____. 
 
         

 
______________________________________________________ 
 
 
___________________________, __________________________             
(Print)             (Title) 
 
 
STATE OF ____________________  )   
 
______________________COUNTY )SS  
 
       

Personally came before me this ______ day of ______________, 20____, the above named 
 
_______________________ to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged the same. 
 
       ______________________________________ 
 
       Notary Public, _______________ County, ____ 
 
       My Commission Expires:__________________ 

 

60 of 98 2023-04-21



SHEET 6 OF 6 SHEETS 
 

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. ______ 
 

PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4, NORTHEAST 1/4  
& SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4,  

SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST,  
VILLAGE OF SOMERS, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

 
 
 

PLAN COMMISSION APPROVAL 
 
 
Approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Somers on this ______ day of ______________, 20___. 

 
 
 
_____________________________________  _________________________         
George Stoner, President     Date 
 
 
 
_____________________________________  _________________________ 
Secretary       Date 

 
  

                           
 

VILLAGE BOARD APPROVAL 
 
 
Approved by the Village Board of the Village of Somers on this ______ day of ______________, 20____. 

 
 
 
_____________________________________  _________________________         
George Stoner, Village President    Date 
 
 
 
_____________________________________  _________________________ 
Brandi Baker, Village Clerk-Treasurer   Date 

 

61 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

 
 

VILLAGE OF SOMERS 
VILLAGE BOARD 

MEETING ITEM MEMORANDUM  
              
MEETING DATE:  April 25, 2023 
 
TO:    Village President Stoner and Village Trustees 
 
FROM:   Brandi Baker, Clerk/Treasurer  
   
AGENDA ITEM: #13 Action on proposed Ordinance 2023-010, an Ordinance to repeal  

and recreate section 13.55 Appendix “A” of the Code of 
Ordinances of the Village of Somers relating to the amount of 
Sewer service charges   

              
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

Mount Pleasant has increased their sewer charges to $140.00 per Quarter. Staff proposes 
an increase to the 257 customers located in the KR Utility District to reflect the increase 
we will be charged from Mount Pleasant.  
 
The proposed KR Utility District rate will increase from $134.95 per quarter to $140.00 
per quarter.  

 
PRIOR ACTION TAKEN:  
 
 This was discussed our April 18th Work Session 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION/ACTION REQUESTED/COMMENTS:  
 

Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2023-009/ In the event that the Village 
Board agrees with the suggested action, a suggested motion to approve would be as 
follows:   
 

“Motion to waive first reading of Ordinance No. 2023-010” 
 
“Motion to approve proposed Ordinance 2023-010, an Ordinance to repeal and 
recreate section 13.55 Appendix “A” of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of 
Somers relating to the amount of Sewer service charges 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

62 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

 Ordinance 2023-010 

63 of 98 2023-04-21



(Rev. 4/11/23)

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-010

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND RECREATE SECTION 13.55 APPENDIX “A”
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF SOMERS

RELATING TO AMOUNT OF SEWER SERVICE CHARGES 
______________________________________________________________________________

The Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Somers, Kenosha County,

Wisconsin, hereby repeals and recreates Section 13.55 Appendix “A” of the Code of Ordinances

of the Village of Somers to read as follows:

APPENDIX “A”

1 Somers Utility District (Rates Revised and Effective 1-1-2022)

Residential - (REU) 

Non-Residential (per REU)

Fixed Charge $185.40/3 months

$185.40/3 months

2 KR Utility District (Rates Revised and Effective 7-1-2023)

Residential (all units) Somers administration fee
Mt. Pleasant charge

$60.71/3 months
$140.00/3 months

3 Public Entities (Rates Revised and Effective 1-1-2022)

UW-Parkside
Petrifying Springs Park

Meter volume billing at 
$6.8093 x 1,000 gallons

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD.
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net
64 of 98 2023-04-21



(Rev. 4/11/23)

Dated at Somers, Wisconsin, this _____ day of __________, 2023.

VILLAGE OF SOMERS

      By:___________________________________
George Stoner, President

             Attest:___________________________________
Brandi Baker, Clerk/Treasurer

DAVISON LAW OFFICE, LTD.
 1207 55th Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140

Telephone No. (262) 657-5165   Fax No. (262) 657-5517   E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net
65 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

 
 

VILLAGE OF SOMERS 
VILLAGE BOARD 

MEETING ITEM MEMORANDUM  
              
MEETING DATE:  April 25th, 2023 
 
TO:    Village President Stoner and Village Trustees 
 
PREPARED BY:  Jason J. Peters, Administrator  
 
AGENDA ITEM:  #14 Action on proposed Resolution 2023-007, A Resolution in  

Support of the City Burlington’s effort to amend Wisconsin State 
Statue 125.51(4)(e) to allow the transfer of “Class B” liquor 
licenses throughout an entire county 

              
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

The City of Burlington recently found itself short one “Class B” liquor license when two 
new businesses were looking to open in the city. Burlington reached out to neighboring 
communities within a two-mile radius (as allowed by statute) to see if they could buy an 
unused license.  
 
“A municipality may transfer up to 3 reserve "Class B" licenses to a municipality that is 
contiguous or within 2 miles of the transferring municipality. The transferring 
municipality establishes the initial issuance fee in an amount not less than $10,000. Upon 
receipt of the issuance fee, the receiving municipality shall pay the issuance fee to the 
transferring municipality. (sec. 125.51(4)(e), Wis. Stats.)” 
 
None of their neighboring communities were willing to sell a license and Burlington lost 
one of the businesses.  
 
The City of Burlington reached out to State Representative Robin Vos to petition a 
change to the area municipalities can ask for a Class B Liquor license. The change would 
increase the area from two miles to the entire county.  
 
Early this month, the Village received the attached letter from the Mayor of Burlington 
seeking the support of other communities in their efforts. 

 
PRIOR ACTION TAKEN:  
 

The Board reviewed and discussed this matter at our April 18th Work Session.  The 
general consensus was to prepare a Resolution in support of Burlington’s efforts to 

66 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

request a change in the State Statute. The Board also inquired as to the current status of 
the Village’s allotment of liquor license.  Clerk/Treasurer Baker has provided the 
attached summary.  

 
SUGGESTED ACTION/ACTION REQUESTED/COMMENTS:  
 

In the event that the Village Board agrees with the suggested action, a suggested motion 
to approve would be as follows:   
 

“Motion to approve proposed Resolution 2023-007, A Resolution in  
Support of the City Burlington’s effort to amend Wisconsin State Statue 
125.51(4)(e) to allow the transfer of “Class B” liquor licenses throughout an 
entire county” 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Letter from City of Burlington Mayor Jeannie Hefty  
 
Status of Village Allotted Licenses  
 
Proposed Resolution 2023-007 

 

67 of 98 2023-04-21



-?
Burlrngton

My name is Jeannie Hefty. I am the Mayor of the City of Burlington, Wisconsin.

I am asking you to join me in requesting the State to allow municipa-lities to request a
transfer of a "Class B" liquor licenses throughout the entire county, rather than being
Iimited to a 2-mile contiguous radius.

Our City was recently faced with two solid applicants wishing to apply for a "Class B"
liquor license; however, the City only had one license remaining. This resulted in our
Council having to choose a "winner" and a "loser". Both had solid business plans. BotJl
would have been welcomed and successful in our community.

We are a growing community! Unfortunately, the need to grow our population by another
5OO, won't happen in time to support the addition of potential new businesses and
restaurants wanting to come here. Your communities are growing too! The current
limitations on "Class B" liquor licenses prevent new businesses and stunts economic
growth!

Representative Robin Vos will assist municipalities ald will pursue this at the State level,
but we need your support. I am requesting signatures from a-11 levels of government in the
County and have attached a document to provide your signature.

Please pursue this as soon as possible, and help to make a difference to expard future
growth and economic development in our counties and municipalities.

In closing, I don't want any municipality to go through what the City of Burlington did.

Thank you!

Sincerely,

Mayor Jeannie Hefty
City of Burlington
Burlington, Wisconsin

Mayor's Office | 300 N. Pine Street, Budington, Wl 53105
(262\ 342-1161 | (262) 763-3474 fax I www. burlington-wi.gov68 of 98 2023-04-21



We support changing the liquor law stating you can only request a transfer of
a "Class B" liquor license from a neighboring municipality within a2-rrrile
contiguous radius, to requesting a transfer of "Class B" liquor license
throughout the entire countSr.

MUNICTPALITY EMAILNAME TITLE

69 of 98 2023-04-21



Municapality  License Type  Alloted  Used Remaining

Village  Class A Retail Intoxicating Liqour Licenses Alloted  31 10 21

Village  Class A Retail Fermented Malt Beverages  Licenses Alloted  19 10 9

Village  Class B Liquor Licenses (Taverns) 19 10 9

Village Population‐9301

"Class A" Retail Intoxicating Liquor Licenses shall be whichever is the 
greatest; one license for each 300 population 

Class "A" Retail Fermented Malt Beverage Licenses shall be 
whichever is the greatest; one license for each 500 population

State quota only applies to "Class B" Liquor License (taverns) one 
license per 500 population

*No Quotas on Class "B" Fermented Malt Beverage Licenses 

70 of 98 2023-04-21



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-007 
 

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE CITY OF BURLINGTON’S EFFORT 
TO AMEND WISCONSIN STATE STATUTE 125.51(4)(e) TO ALLOW THE 

TRANSFER OF “CLASS B” LIQUOR LICENSES THROUGHOUT AN 
ENTIRE COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Wisconsin State Statute 125.51(4)(e) states that a municipality may transfer 

up to 3 reserve "Class B" licenses to a municipality that is contiguous or within 2 miles of the 
transferring municipality; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Somers has received City of Burlington Mayor Jeannie 

Hefty’s correspondence requesting that municipalities join their effort to request that the State of 
Wisconsin allow municipalities to have the ability to transfer “Class B” liquor licenses to another 
municipality within their County of residence; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Somers Board of Trustees reviewed the above referenced 

correspondence at their April 18th, 2023 Work Session; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Somers Board of Trustees agrees that the requirement that the 
transfer be from a municipality that is contiguous or within 2 miles of the transferring 
municipality is unduly burdensome and could potentially hinder the attraction of businesses; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Burlington seeks to amend Wisconsin State Statute 125.51(4)(e) 

to allow for transfers of “Class B” liquor licenses between municipalities within their County of 
residence; and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Somers supports the City of Burlington’s efforts to amend Wisconsin State Statute 125.51(4) (e), 
and calls on the Legislature to pass legislation amending Wisconsin State Statutes to allow 
municipalities to have the ability to transfer “Class B” liquor licenses to another municipality 
within their County of residence; and  

 
FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of the Village of Somers directs the 

Village Clerk to send a copy of this resolution to the City of Burlington, State Legislators 
representing the Village of Somers, and to Governor Tony Evers.  

 
 Adopted by the Village Board of the Village of Somers, Kenosha County, 

Wisconsin, this  day of April 2023. 
 
 
     Village of Somers 
 
     By_      _____ 
     George Stoner, President 
 
      

Attest        
      Brandi Baker, Village Clerk 
 71 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

 
 

VILLAGE OF SOMERS 
VILLAGE BOARD 

MEETING ITEM MEMORANDUM  
              
MEETING DATE:  April 25th, 2023 
 
TO:    Village President Stoner and Village Trustees 
 
PREPARED BY:  Jason J. Peters, Administrator 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  #15 Discussion and possible action on change order #3 from Camosy  

Construction Inc. for Lift Station No. 1A and Water Transfer 
Station 

 
#16 Discussion and possible action on request for Final Payment from  

Camosy Construction Inc. in the amount of $139,512 for work on 
Lift Station 1A and Water Transfer Station 

              
 
 BACKGROUND:   
  

On January 12, 2021, the Village Board awarded the bid for Lift Station 1A and Water 
Transfer Station to Camosy Construction Inc. in the amount of $2,579,400. The contract 
price was previously adjusted to (Change Order #1 approved 08/24/2021 and Change 
Order #2 approved 05/24/2022) to $2,987,716.62. Camosy Construction has filed its final 
documentation to close out this project.  This includes Change Order #3 and their final 
request for payment. Change Order #3 represented an increase of $9,825 to increase the 
size of pipe within this station from 4” to 8”. Baxter and Woodman will cover the cost of 
this increase through a refund to the Village.  The final contract price is $2,997,5421.62.  
Camosy Construction Inc. has final payment request is in the amount of $139,512.  The 
Board has previously approved the following: 
 

• 1st request   June 22, 2021   $36,433 
• 2nd request  June 22, 2021   $234,100 
• 3rd request  August 10, 2021  $231,493 
• 4th request  August 10, 2021  $278,502 
• 5th request  October 12, 2021  $265,369 
• 6th request  November 23, 2021  $341,554 
• 7th request   November 23, 2021  $259,878 
• 8th request  December 14, 2021  $241,283 
• 9th request  February 8, 2022  $53,832 
• 10th request  February 8, 2022  $74,649 

72 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

• 11th request  March 22, 2022  $45,926 
• 12th request  April 12, 2022   $168,604 
• 13th request  May 24, 2022   $347,822 
• 14th request  July 26, 2022   $214,408.62 
• 15th request  August 10, 2022  $64,176 

 
Payments to date      $2,858,029.62 

 
PRIOR ACTION TAKEN:  

Change Order #3 and the final request for payment have not been previously reviewed by 
the Board. 

SUGGESTED ACTION/ACTION REQUESTED/COMMENTS: 

Engineer Snyder has reviewed the requests and recommends approval.  In the event the 
Village Board agrees with the suggested action, a suggested motion to approve would be 
as follows: 

#15 

“Motion to approve change order #3 from Camosy Construction Inc. for 
Lift Station No. 1A and Water Transfer Station” 

#16 

“Motion to approve request for Final Payment from Camosy Construction 
Inc. in the amount of $139,512 for work on Lift Station 1A and Water 
Transfer Station” 

ATTACHMENTS:  
  

Change Order #3 
 
Engineer Snyder’s Recommendation Final Payment Request 

73 of 98 2023-04-21



00 63 63 
 

CHANGE ORDER 3 
 

CHANGE ORDER FORM 
00 63 63-1 

PROJECT: LS 1A and Water Transfer Station DATE OF ISSUANCE: March 13, 2023 
    
OWNER: Village of Somers 

7511 12th St. 
Somers, WI  53171 

ENGINEER: Baxter & Woodman, Inc. 
256 S. Pine St. 
Burlington WI, 53105 

    
CONTRACTOR: Camosy Construction, Inc. 

43451 N, US Highway 41 
Zion, IL  60099-9455 

ENGINEER's Project No. 201226 and 201227 
 
 

    
You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract Documents: 
 

Description: Modify the pump discharge piping based on the 07-19-2022 work directive from 
the Engineer.   

  
Purpose of Change Order: Increase flow and pressure from station. Also revise the completion 

date to allow for restoration and asphalt repairs and delivery of a 
final payment application without liquidated damages. 
 

  
Attachments:  Marked 12/23/2022 Camosy letter with supporting data 

 
CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE:  

  
CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIME: 

    
Original Contract Price: $ 2,579,400.00  Original Contract Time: January 12, 2021 
   Substantial Completion: November 24, 2021 
   Completion: December 31, 2021 
    
Previous Change Orders:    
No. 1 to No. 3  $  408,316.62         
    
Current Contract Price: $     2,987,716.62  Current Completion Dates :    
   Substantial Completion: July 15, 2022 
   Completion: August 30, 2022 
Net increase of this Change Order: $             9,825.00     

   
 Net Increase of this Change Order:  Approximately 

8 months 
  

Contract Price with this Change Order: $       2,997,541.62            Completion Dates with this Change Order:  
   Substantial Completion: None 

   Completion: April 15, 2023 
      

 
PREPARED BY: APPROVED BY: ACCEPTED BY: 

BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC. VILLAGE OF SOMERS CAMOSY CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
 

By: ________________________ By:  _______________________ By:  _________________________ 
Douglas R. Snyder, P.E.         George Stoner Kevin Camosy 

         Project Manager          Village President         Project Manager/Authorized Rep. 
 

74 of 98 2023-04-21



75 of 98 2023-04-21



76 of 98 2023-04-21



77 of 98 2023-04-21



78 of 98 2023-04-21



79 of 98 2023-04-21



80 of 98 2023-04-21



81 of 98 2023-04-21



82 of 98 2023-04-21



April 21, 2023 

Ms. Brandi Baker, Clerk-Treasurer 
Village of Somers 
7511 12th Street 
Somers, WI 53171 

Subject:  LS 1A and Water Transfer Station – Contingent Final Payment Recommendation 

Dear Ms. Baker, 

Enclosed is a draft final payment application from Camosy Incorporated., Contractor, for the Lift 
Station 1A and Water Transfer Station project.  This draft application lacks the contract required 
lien waivers and a guarantee.  The following is our opinion of the amount due and payable to the 
Contractor following approval of Change Order 3 and the items noted below. 

Contract Price after CO 3  $2,997,541.62 
Work Completed to Date  $2,997,541.62 
Less Amount Retained    ($ 0.00) 
Subtotal    $2,997,541.62 
Less Previous Payment  ($2,858,029.62) 
Total Amount Due for final Payment  $139,512.00 

We recommend payment to Camosy Construction, Inc. for $139,512.00 contingent on 
Engineer’s receipt and approval of original copies of the following: 

 Unconditional final lien waivers from each subcontractor listed on the sworn statement.

 Unconditional final lien waiver from Camosy Incorporated.

 Revised and notarized sworn statement showing subs and suppliers are paid.

 Consent from Surety for final payment.

 Three-Year Warranty.  Provide the language below on Camosy letterhead; provide a warranty
bond of a minimum value of $149,877.08 – 5% of contract with a duration of 3 years starting
April 21, 2023.  Reference the warranty bond number in the three-year warranty letter.

Camosy Construction, Inc., (Contractor) completed the Lift Station 1A and the Water 
Transfer Station Project (Project) for the Village of Somers, WI, (Owner) and hereby 
guarantees for a period of three years, commencing April 21, 2023 and ending April 20, 
2026, that should any defect due to improper materials or workmanship develop on 
the Project during the period of the guarantee, the Contractor will remedy the defect 
without expense to the Owner.   In addition, the following items were not complete by 
the time of this letter and are considered covered by this guarantee: 

 Floor slab repair at transfer station
 Driveway repair at transfer station
 Complete O & M manual for both buildings – digital and

hardcopy
 Regrade the lift station site to fill low spots and seed and restore

entire site.

83 of 98 2023-04-21



 

 
This guarantee is for all work except equipment with a separate 
guarantee from the manufacturer as described in Section 01 61 01 of 
the Specifications.  Equipment without separate guarantees from the 
manufacturer are covered in this three-year warranty.     

 

We will provide the unconditional final payment recommendation with the final payment application, when it 
is available; the Village should hold payment to the Contractor until you receive this submittal from our office.  
We will also provide the final cost of Lift Station 1A (Sanitary Sewer Utility) and the water transfer station 
(Water Utility) with the final payment application.   The water utility cost will be provided in the Wisconsin 
Public Service Commission accounting format.   

 Sincerely, 

 
BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC. 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS 

 
Douglas R. Snyder, P.E. 
 
DRS/drs 
Encs. 
C/encs.: Jason J. Peters, JD/MPA, Administrator  

Kevin Camosy, Camosy Incorporated. (email) 
  
 
I:\CRYSTAL LAKE\SOMEV\201226 AND 201227 LS 1A AND BOOSTER\60-CONSTRUCTION - COMMON 
GCA\PAYMENTS\16\CONTINGENT FINAL PR.DOC    

84 of 98 2023-04-21



85 of 98 2023-04-21



86 of 98 2023-04-21



87 of 98 2023-04-21



88 of 98 2023-04-21



89 of 98 2023-04-21



90 of 98 2023-04-21



91 of 98 2023-04-21



92 of 98 2023-04-21



93 of 98 2023-04-21



94 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

 
 

VILLAGE OF SOMERS 
VILLAGE BOARD 

MEETING ITEM MEMORANDUM  
              
MEETING DATE:  April 25th, 2023 
 
TO:    Village President Stoner and Village Trustees 
 
PREPARED BY:  Jason J. Peters, Administrator 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  #17  Action on re-appointment of Donald Boxx to Plan Commission (3- 

year term to expire 04/30/2026)  
 

   #18 Action on appointment of Gregg Thompson to Plan Commission  
(3-year term to expire 04/30/2026)  
 

#19 Action on appointment of Vincent Chambers to Plan Commission  
(3-year term to expire 04/30/2026)  

 
   #20 Action on appointment of Patrick Juliana, as alternate  

to Plan Commission (3-year term to end 04/30/2026) 
              
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

The Plan Commission has three commissioners whose terms are set to expire. Plan 
Commissioners serve a 3-year term or until a successor is named.  Commissioner Sandee 
Gardinier, Commission Donald Boxx and Alternate Commissioner Steve Raith, Jr’s 
terms are set to expire on April 30th.   
 
Donald Boxx is willing to serve another 3-year term.  Sandee Gardinier will be stepping 
down.   
 
Commissioner Fredrick will also be stepping down after being recently elected to the 
Village Board.   
 
This leaves two commissioners and one alternate that needs to be appointed.   
 
Over the past two weeks, Staff has reached out to potential candidates and President 
Stoner held several interviews.  President Stoner would like to nominate the following 
Somers residents to the Plan Commission:  
 

Commissioner  

95 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

 
Gregg Thompson, who runs his own project management and construction 
consulting firm.   Mr. Thompson is also a former member of KABA and 
RCEDC.  

  
Commissioner  
 

Vince Chambers, who is a retired construction superintendent and has a 
degree in landscape architecture. 

 
Alternate  
 

Patrick Juliana, who was an alderman for the City of Kenosha for many 
years and has served an many committees (Board of Water Commission, 
Historical Preservation Commission, Licensing/Permit Committee, …).  

  
PRIOR ACTION TAKEN:  
 

These potential appointments were reviewed and discussed at our April 18th Work 
Session.  

 
SUGGESTED ACTION/ACTION REQUESTED/COMMENTS:  
 

Administration would like to thank Ms. Gardinier, Mr. Fredrick, and Mr. Raith for their 
service to the Plan Commission.   
 
Staff would recommend the beforementioned appointments. In the event that the Village 
Board agrees with the suggested action, a suggested motion to approve would be as 
follows:   
 
#17 

 
“Motion to approve re-appointment of Donald Boxx to Plan Commission (3- 
year term to expire 04/30/2026) 

 
#18  
 

“Motion to approve appointment of Gregg Thompson to Plan Commission  
(3-year term to expire 04/30/2026)” 

 
#19 
 

“Motion to approve appointment of appointment of Vincent Chambers to Plan 
Commission (3-year term to expire 04/30/2026)” 

 
 #20   

 
“Motion to approve appointment of Patrick Juliana, as alternate to Plan 
Commission (3-year term to end 04/30/2026)” 

 

96 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 NONE 
 

97 of 98 2023-04-21



 
 

 
 

 

 
 

VILLAGE OF SOMERS 
VILLAGE BOARD 

MEETING ITEM MEMORANDUM  
              
MEETING DATE:  April 25, 2023 
 
TO:    Village President Stoner and Village Trustees 
 
PREPARED BY:  Brandi Baker, Clerk/Treasurer  
 
AGENDA ITEM:  #21 Action on recommendation to approve operator licenses for Joseph  

Meier, Allie Hedges, and Tracy Mcallister 
              
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

Joseph Meier, Allie Hedges, and Tracy Mcallister have applied for operators’ licenses for 
the Village. No discrepancies with the applications.  
 

PRIOR ACTION TAKEN:  
 
 None. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION/ACTION REQUESTED/COMMENTS:  
 

Staff recommends approval. In the event that the Village Board agrees with the 
recommendation to approve applications, a suggested motion would be as follows: 
 

“Motion to approve Operator Licenses: Joseph Meier, Allie Hedges, and Tracy 
Mcallister” 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
NONE 

98 of 98 2023-04-21


	1 Village Meeting Agenda 04.25.2023
	3a 2023.04.11 VB Minutes-Draft
	3b 2023.04.13 FIN Check Run
	3c 2023.04.20 FIN Check Run
	3d Investment Summary Report March
	3e Ehlers Account Statment March
	7 8 Village Meeting Memo - UD 1
	7 8a UD 1 Petition
	7 8b UD 1 Notice
	7 8c Res 2023-005 UD 1
	7 8d Map of Area
	9 10 11 Village Meeting Memo - LOMR
	9 10 11a Notice of Public Hearing Resolution LOMR
	9 10 11b Res 2023-006 LOMR
	9 10 11c Ord 2023-009 ZN 4.08(1)(a)5b
	12 Village Meeting Memo - Funk Golden Oil
	12a Golden Oil CTH E RPT 2023-03-28
	12b PC Minutes - 2023.04.10 Highlighted
	12c Golden Oil Rezoning App
	12d Golden Oil Land Division App
	13 Village Meeting Memo - Ordinance 2023-010
	13a Ordinance 2023-010
	14 Village Meeting Memo - Resolution 2023-007
	14a Burlington Class B Request
	14b 2023 CLK Allotted Liquor License
	14c Res 2023-007
	15 16 Village Meeting Memo - PR Camosy Final
	15 16a Camosy Unsigned CO 3
	15 16b Camosy Contingent Final Payment Recommendation
	17 18 19 20 Village Meeting Memo - PC
	21 Village Meeting Memo - Operators Licenses



